UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

SCHEDULE 14A

Amendment No. 1

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Filed by	y a party other than the Registrant \Box					
Check t	the appropriate box:					
	Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2)) Definitive Proxy Statement Definitive Additional Materials					
	ANEBULO PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.					
	(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)					
	(Alama of Danier (A. Filling Danier Statement if all and an day Davietane)					
	(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)					
Paymer	nt of Filing Fee (Check all boxes that apply):					
\boxtimes	No fee required					
	Fee paid previously with preliminary materials					
	Fee computed on table in exhibit required by Item 25(b) per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11					
	EXPLANATORY NOTE					

Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. is filing this Amendment No. 1 to its definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A initially filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 17, 2022 solely to append the form of proxy card to the end of the definitive proxy statement. No other changes have been made to the definitive proxy statement.

ANEBULO PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

1415 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite 201 Lakeway, Texas 78734

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To Be Held On October 28, 2022

Dear Stockholder:

Filed by the Registrant

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"). The meeting will be held on Friday, October 28, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. (Pacific Time) at the Sheraton Grand Seattle located at 1400 6th Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101. The meeting will be held for the following purposes:

- To elect the Board of Directors' nominees, Nat Calloway, Areta Kupchyk and Kenneth Lin, to the Board of Directors to hold office until the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders as Class II directors.
- To ratify the selection by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of EisnerAmper LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.
- 3. To conduct any other business properly brought before the meeting.

These items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this Notice.

The record date for the Annual Meeting is September 28, 2022. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on that date may vote at the meeting or any adjournment

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to Be Held on October 28, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. (Pacific Time) at the Sheraton Grand Seattle located at 1400 6th Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101.

The proxy statement and annual report to stockholders

By Order of the Board of Directors

Jan R Weith

Rex Merchant Secretary

Lakeway, Texas October 17, 2022

You are cordially invited to attend the meeting in person. Whether or not you expect to attend the meeting, please complete, date, sign and return the enclosed proxy card, or vote over the internet as instructed in these materials, as promptly as possible in order to ensure your representation at the meeting. A return envelope (which is postage prepaid if mailed in the United States) has been provided for your convenience. Even if you have voted by proxy, you may still vote in person if you attend the meeting. Please note, however, that if your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee and you wish to vote at the meeting, you must obtain a proxy issued in your name from that record holder.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THESE PROXY MATERIALS AND VOTING	1
PROPOSAL 1 ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	6
INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	9
Independence of The Board of Directors	9
Board Leadership Structure	9
Role of the Board in Risk Oversight	10
Meetings of The Board of Directors	10
Information Regarding Committees of the Board of Directors	10
Audit Committee	11
Compensation Committee	11
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee	12
Stockholder Communications With The Board Of Directors	14
Code of Ethics	14
Hedging Policy	14
PROPOSAL 2 RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	15
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	16
Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports	17
INFORMATION ABOUT OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	18
EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION	19
Summary Compensation Table	19
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal year end	21
Option Repricings	21
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control	21
<u>Director Compensation</u>	23
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans	25
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS AND INDEMNIFICATION	25
Related Person Transactions Policy and Procedures	25
Related Party Transactions	25
<u>Indemnification</u>	26
HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS	27
OTHER MATTERS	28

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THESE PROXY MATERIALS AND VOTING

Why am I receiving these materials?

We have sent you these proxy materials because the Board of Directors (sometimes referred to as the "Board") of Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the "Company," "we," "our" or "us") is soliciting your proxy to vote at the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting"), including at any adjournments or postponements of the Annual Meeting. You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting in person to vote on the proposals described in this proxy statement. However, you do not need to attend the meeting to vote your shares. Instead, you may simply complete, sign and return the enclosed proxy card, or follow the instructions below to submit your proxy through the internet.

We intend to mail these proxy materials on October 17, 2022 to all stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

How do I attend the Annual Meeting?

The Annual Meeting will be held on Friday, October 28, 2022, at 9:00 a.m. (Pacific Time) at the Sheraton Grand Seattle located at 1400 th Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101. Information on how to vote in person at the Annual Meeting is discussed below. Please call us at (704) 605-1325 if you need assistance with directions to the Annual Meeting.

Who can vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on September 28, 2022 (the "record date") will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. On the record date, there were 25,633,217 shares of common stock outstanding and entitled to vote.

Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If on September 28, 2022 your shares were registered directly in your name with our transfer agent, Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company, then you are a stockholder of record. As a stockholder of record, you may vote in person at the meeting or vote by proxy. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, we urge you to fill out and return the enclosed proxy card or vote by proxy through the internet to ensure your vote is counted.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker, Bank or Other Nominee

If on September 28, 2022 your shares were held, not in your name, but rather in an account at a brokerage firm, bank or other nominee, then you are the beneficial owner of shares held in "street name" and these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by that organization. The organization holding your account is considered to be the stockholder of record for purposes of voting at the Annual Meeting. As a beneficial owner, you have the right to direct your broker, bank or other nominee regarding how to vote the shares in your account. You are also invited to attend the Annual Meeting. Please note, however, that if your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee and you wish to vote at the Annual Meeting, you must obtain a valid proxy issued in your name from that record holder.

What am I voting on?

There are two matters scheduled for a vote:

- Proposal 1: Election of Board of Directors' nominees, Nat Calloway, Areta Kupchyk and Kenneth Lin, to the Board of Directors to hold office until the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders as Class II directors; and
- <u>Proposal 2</u>: Ratification of the selection by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of EisnerAmper LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

1

What if another matter is properly brought before the Annual Meeting?

The Board of Directors knows of no other matters that will be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying proxy to vote on those matters in accordance with their best judgment.

How do I vote?

You may either vote "For" all the nominees to the Board of Directors or you may "Withhold" your vote for any nominee you specify. For each of the other matters to be voted on, you may vote "For" or "Against" or abstain from voting.

The procedures for voting are fairly simple:

Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If you are a stockholder of record, you may vote at the Annual Meeting, vote by proxy using the enclosed proxy card or vote by proxy through the internet. Whether or not you plan to attend the Annual Meeting, we urge you to vote by proxy to ensure your vote is counted. You may still attend the Annual Meeting and vote at the Annual Meeting even if you have already voted by proxy.

- To vote in person, come to the Annual Meeting and we will give you a ballot when you arrive.
- To vote *prior* to the Annual Meeting, please follow the instructions below.
 - To vote using the proxy card, simply complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy card and return it promptly in the envelope provided. If you return your signed proxy card to us before the Annual Meeting, we will vote your shares as you direct.
 - To vote through the internet prior to the meeting, go to www.cstproxyvote.com and follow the instructions to submit your vote on an electronic proxy card. You will be asked to provide the Control Number from the enclosed proxy card. Your internet vote must be received by 11:59 p.m. (Eastern Time) on October 27, 2022 to be counted.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of Broker, Bank or Other Nominee

If you are a beneficial owner of shares registered in the name of your broker, bank or other nominee, you should have received a voting instruction form with these proxy materials from that organization rather than from us. To vote *prior* to the Annual Meeting, simply complete and mail the voting instruction form to ensure that your vote is counted. Alternatively, you may vote over the internet as instructed by your broker, bank or other nominee. To vote at the Annual Meeting, you must obtain a valid proxy issued in your name from your broker, bank or other nominee included with these proxy materials, or contact that organization to request a proxy form.

Internet proxy voting will be provided to allow you to vote your shares online, with procedures designed to ensure the authenticity and correctness of your proxy vote instructions. However, please be aware that you must bear any costs associated with your internet access, such as usage charges from internet access providers.

How many votes do I have?

On each matter to be voted upon, you have one vote for each share of common stock you own as of September 28, 2022.

2

If I am a stockholder of record and I do not vote, or if I return a proxy card or otherwise vote without giving specific voting instructions, what happens?

If you are a stockholder of record and do not vote by completing your proxy card, through the internet or in person at the Annual Meeting, your shares will not be voted.

If you return a signed and dated proxy card or otherwise vote without marking voting selections, your shares will be voted, as applicable, "For" the election of Board of Directors' nominees, Nat Calloway, Areta Kupchyk and Kenneth Lin, to the Board of Directors to hold office until the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders as Class II directors and "For" the ratification of the selection by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of EisnerAmper LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm

of the Company for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. If any other matter is properly presented at the Annual Meeting, your proxyholder (one of the individuals named on your proxy card) will vote your shares using his best judgment.

If I am a beneficial owner of shares held in street name and I do not provide my broker, bank or other nominee with voting instructions, what happens?

If you are a beneficial owner of shares held in street name and you do not instruct your broker, bank or other nominee how to vote your shares, your broker, bank or other nominee may still be able to vote your shares in its discretion. Under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (the "NYSE"), brokers, banks and other nominees that are subject to the NYSE rules may use their discretion to vote your "uninstructed" shares with respect to matters considered to be "routine" under NYSE rules, but not with respect to "non-routine" matters. In this regard, Proposal 1 is considered to be "non-routine" under NYSE rules meaning that your broker, bank or other nominee may not vote your shares on Proposal 1 in the absence of your voting instructions. However, Proposal 2 is considered to be a "routine" matter under the NYSE rules meaning that if you do not return voting instructions to your broker, bank or other nominee by its deadline, your shares may be voted by your broker, bank or other nominee in its discretion on Proposal 2.

If you a beneficial owner of shares held in street name, and you do not plan to attend the Annual Meeting, in order to ensure your shares are voted in the way you would prefer, you <u>must</u> provide voting instructions to your broker, bank or other nominee by the deadline provided in the materials you receive from your broker, bank or other nominee.

Who is paying for this proxy solicitation?

We will pay for the entire cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to these proxy materials, our directors and employees may also solicit proxies in person, by telephone, or by other means of communication. Directors and employees will not be paid any additional compensation for soliciting proxies. We will, upon request, also reimburse brokerage firms, banks and other nominees for the cost of forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners.

What does it mean if I receive more than one set of proxy materials?

If you receive more than one set of proxy materials, your shares may be registered in more than one name or in different accounts. Please follow the voting instructions on the proxy cards in the proxy materials to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

Can I change my vote after submitting my proxy?

Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

Yes. You can revoke your proxy at any time before the final vote at the Annual Meeting. If you are the record holder of your shares, you may revoke your proxy in any one of the following ways:

- You may submit another properly completed proxy card with a later date.
- You may grant a subsequent proxy through the internet.
- You may send a timely written notice that you are revoking your proxy to our Secretary at 1415 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite 201, Lakeway, Texas 78734.
- You may attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person. Simply attending the Annual Meeting will not, by itself, revoke your proxy.

Your most current proxy card or internet proxy is the one that is counted.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of Broker, Bank or Other Nominee

If your shares are held by your broker, bank or other nominee, you should follow the instructions provided by your broker, bank or other nominee.

3

When are stockholder proposals and director nominations due for next year's annual meeting?

To be considered for inclusion in next year's proxy materials, your proposal must be submitted in writing by June 19, 2023 to our Secretary at 1415 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite 201, Lakeway, Texas 78734.

If you wish to submit a proposal (including a director nomination) at the meeting that is not to be included in next year's proxy materials, you must deliver your notice to our Secretary at the address above not later than the close of business on July 30, 2023, nor earlier than the close of business on June 30, 2023; provided, however, that in the event the date of the annual meeting is advanced or delayed by more than 30 days prior to the one year anniversary date of this Annual Meeting, notice must be delivered not earlier than the close of business on the 120th day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the 90th day prior to such annual meeting and the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such annual meeting is first made by us. Your notice to our Secretary must set forth the information specified in our Amended and Restated Bylaws ("Bylaws"), including your name and address and the class, series and number of shares of our stock that you beneficially own. You are advised to review our Bylaws, which contain additional requirements related to advance notice of stockholder proposals and director nominations.

In addition to satisfying the foregoing requirements under our Bylaws, to comply with the universal proxy rules, stockholders who intend to solicit proxies in support of director nominees other than our Board of Director's nominees must provide notice that sets forth any additional information required by Rule 14a-19 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. If a stockholder's written notice is not received between the dates specified in the immediately preceding paragraph and does not satisfy these additional informational requirements, the notice will not be considered properly submitted and will not be acted upon at the 2023 annual meeting of stockholders.

How are votes counted?

Votes will be counted by the inspector of election appointed for the Annual Meeting, who will separately count, for Proposal 1, votes "For," "Withhold" and broker non-votes; and, for Proposal 2, votes "For" and "Against," and abstentions. Abstentions will be counted towards the vote total for Proposal 2 and will have the same effect as "Against" votes. Broker non-votes will have no effect and will not be counted towards the vote total.

What are "broker non-votes"?

As discussed above, when a beneficial owner of shares held in street name does not give voting instructions to such beneficial owner's broker, bank or other nominee holding such beneficial owner's shares as to how to vote on matters deemed to be "non-routine" under NYSE rules, the broker, bank or other nominee cannot vote the shares. These unvoted shares are counted as "broker non-votes." Proposal 1 is considered to be "non-routine" under NYSE rules and we therefore expect broker non-votes to exist in connection with Proposal 1.

As a reminder, if you are a beneficial owner of shares held in street name, in order to ensure your shares are voted in the way you would prefer, you<u>must</u> provide voting instructions to your broker, bank or other nominee by the deadline provided in the materials you receive from your broker, bank or other nominee.

How many votes are needed to approve each proposal?

For Proposal 1, the election of Board of Directors' nominees, Nat Calloway, Areta Kupchyk and Kenneth Lin, to the Board of Directors to hold office until the 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders as Class II directors, the two nominees receiving the most "For" votes from the holders of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors will be elected. Only votes "For" will affect the outcome.

To be approved, Proposal 2, ratification of the selection by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of EisnerAmper LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for its fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, must receive "For" votes from the holders of a majority of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter. If you "Abstain" from voting, it will have the same effect as an "Against" vote.

4

What is the quorum requirement?

A quorum of stockholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting. A quorum will be present if stockholders holding at least a majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote are present at the Annual Meeting in person or represented by proxy. On the record date, there were 25,633,217 shares outstanding and entitled to vote. Thus, the holders of 12,816,609 shares must be present in person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting to have a quorum.

Your shares will be counted towards the quorum only if you submit a valid proxy (or one is submitted on your behalf by your broker, bank or other nominee) or if you vote at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted towards the quorum requirement. If there is no quorum, either the chair of the meeting or the holders of a majority of shares present at the Annual Meeting or represented by proxy may adjourn the Annual Meeting to another date.

How can I find out the results of the voting at the Annual Meeting?

Preliminary voting results will be announced at the Annual Meeting. In addition, final voting results will be published in a current report on Form 8-K that we expect to file within four business days after the Annual Meeting. If final voting results are not available to us in time to file a Form 8-K within four business days after the Annual Meeting, we intend to file a Form 8-K to publish preliminary results and, within four business days after the final results are known to us, file an additional Form 8-K to publish the final results.

What proxy materials are available on the internet?

The proxy statement and annual report to stockholders are available at https://ir.anebulo.com.

5

PROPOSAL 1

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors is divided into three classes and each class has a three-year term. Vacancies on the Board may be filled only by persons elected by a majority of the remaining directors. A director elected by the Board to fill a vacancy in a class, including vacancies created by an increase in the number of directors, shall serve for the remainder of the full term of that class and until the director's successor is duly elected and qualified.

The Board of Directors presently has seven members. The nominees for election at the Annual Meeting are Areta Kupchyk and Kenneth Lin, who are the two current Class II directors with a term of office that expires at the Annual Meeting, and Nat Calloway, Ph.D, a director nominee. If elected at the Annual Meeting, each of these nominees would serve until the 2025 annual meeting and until his or her successor has been duly elected and qualified, or, if sooner, until the director's death, resignation or removal. It is the Company's policy to encourage, but not require, directors and nominees for director to attend the Annual Meeting. All of the directors attended the 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders in person or by video conference.

Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes of the holders of shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors. Accordingly, the three nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative votes will be elected. Shares represented by executed proxies will be voted, if authority to do so is not withheld, for the election of the three nominees named below. If any nominee becomes unavailable for election as a result of an unexpected occurrence, shares that would have been voted for that nominee will instead be voted for the election of a substitute nominee proposed by us. Each person nominated for election has agreed to serve if elected. The Company's management has no reason to believe that any nominee will be unable to serve.

The following is a brief biography of each nominee and each director whose term will continue after the Annual Meeting.

in the life sciences field, qualify her to serve on our Board of Directors.

Nominees for Election as Class II Directors for a Three-year Term Expiring at the 2025 Annual Meeting

1 (offinitees for Each	Admines for Election as Class it Directors for a Time-year Term Exprining at the 2020 Annual Account							
Name	Age							
Nat Calloway	40	Dr. Calloway is an analyst and partner at 22NW, LP, a Seattle-based value fund specializing in small and microcap investments with a multi-year investment horizon, where he has been employed since June 2021. Dr. Calloway is the lead for 22NW, LP's biotechnology, pharmaceutical and other healthcare investments, including Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Prior to that, Dr. Calloway was the Associate Director of Healthcare Research for Edison Group from December 2015 to June 2021. He has a PhD in Chemistry and Chemical Biology from Cornell University, a Masters of Science in Chemistry from Columbia, and completed a post-doctoral study in neuroscience at Weill Cornell Medical School. He has 10 scientific publications in the areas of physical chemistry, biochemistry and neuroscience. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that Dr. Calloway's extensive experience as an analyst for biotechnology, pharmaceutical and healthcare investments, as well as his educational background, qualify him to serve on our Board of Directors.						
Areta Kupchyk	65	Ms. Kupchyk has served as a member of the Board since April 2021. Ms. Kupchyk is a partner in the law firm of Foley Hoag LLP, where she cochairs the firm's FDA Law practice group, since October 2015. Ms. Kupchyk is an FDA lawyer who advises biotechnology, medical device and pharmaceutical companies, as well as healthcare providers and institutions, researchers and investors in FDA-related matters. Ms. Kupchyk previously						

served as Associate Chief Counsel for Drugs and Biologics and Assistant General Counsel for Litigation at the FDA from 1993 to 2003. Ms. Kupchyk received a B.A. degree from the University of Maryland Baltimore County and J.D. from the University of Maryland School of Law. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that Ms. Kupchyk's extensive experience as regulatory counsel at the FDA, as well as legal expertise

Kenneth Lin

Dr. Lin has served as a member of the Board since February 2021. Dr. Lin provided consulting services to Ligand from 2019 to 2020. Prior to that, he founded and served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of Ab Initio Biotherapeutics from January 2015 to July 2019. From July 2012 to July 2014, he was the Vice President of Corporate Development and Investor Relations for Ulthera, Inc., a medical device company that was acquired by Merz Pharma. From April 2008 to June 2012, Dr. Lin was a Vice President at TPG, a private equity investment firm, where he focused on healthcare. He received his M.D. from Case Western Reserve University with honors and his B.S. degree in Biological Sciences from Stanford University. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that Dr. Lin's extensive experience with private equity investing and management of biotechnology companies qualify him to serve on our Board of Directors.

June 2015 to June 2016. Prior to Allergan plc, Ms. Parschauer was an attorney at Latham and Watkins LLP, where she practiced in the areas of mergers and acquisitions, securities offerings and corporate governance. Ms. Parschauer also serves as a member of the board of directors of Evolus, Inc., a medical aesthetics company, since July 2019. Ms. Parschauer holds a B.A. degree in Biology from Miami University and a J.D. from Harvard Law School. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that Ms. Parschauer's extensive experience within the pharmaceutical industry and as an attorney, particularly with respect to matters concerning corporate governance, qualify her to serve on our Board of Directors.

The Board Of Directors Recommends A Vote In Favor Of Each Named Nominee.

Class III Directors Continuing in Office Until the 2023 Annual Meeting

Name	Age	
Jason M. Aryeh	54	Mr. Aryeh has served as a member of the Board since March 2021. Mr. Aryeh is the founder and managing general partner of JALAA Equities, LP, a private hedge fund focused on the biotechnology and medical device sectors, and has served in such capacity since 1997. Mr. Aryeh has served as a member of the board of directors of Ligand Pharmaceuticals Inc., a publicly-traded biopharmaceutical company focused on developing or acquiring technologies that help pharmaceutical companies discover and develop medicines, since September 2006. Mr. Aryeh has also served as a director of Orchestra BioMed, Inc., a private biomedical innovation company focused on developing transformative therapeutic products, since November 2018. Mr. Aryeh has served as a director of numerous public and private companies. Mr. Aryeh also has transactional expertise in capital markets. Mr. Aryeh earned a B.A. in economics, with honors, from Colgate University, and is a member of the Omicron Delta Epsilon Society in economics. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that Mr. Aryeh's in-depth knowledge of the biopharmaceutical market and broad range of companies in the industry and experience as the managing general partner of a hedge fund focused on the life sciences sector qualify him to serve on our Board of Directors.
Karah Parschauer	45	Ms. Parschauer has served as a member of the Board since February 2021. Ms. Parschauer has served as General Counsel and Executive Vice President of Ultragenyx Pharmaceutical, Inc., a clinical-stage biopharmaceutical company since June 2016. Prior to Ultragenyx, Ms. Parschauer served in various executive capacities, and most recently as Vice President, Associate General Counsel, at Allergan plc, a pharmaceutical company, from

Class I Directors Continuing in Office Until the 2024 Annual Meeting

| Doseph F. Lawler | 50 | Dr. Lawler founded the Company in April 2020 and has been a member of the Board since April 2020. Dr. Lawler briefly served as the President of the Company from April to June 2020. Dr. Lawler is also the founder and has served as Managing Member of JFL Capital Management LLC, a healthcare investment fund with an emphasis on companies pursuing clinical drug development, since January 2015. Prior to Dr. Lawler's involvement with JFL Capital Management LLC, Dr. Lawler was a co-founder and served as Senior Managing Partner of Merus Capital Partners, LLC, a proprietary trading business, from October 2011 to November 2014. Dr. Lawler received his M.D. and Ph.D. from The Johns Hopkins University School of Medicine and he earned his B.A. degree from Queens College, City University of New York. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that Dr. Lawler's extensive expertise in the biomedical field, and extensive experience in investment and strategic development, qualify him to serve on our Board of Directors.

Simon Allen

Mr. Allen has served as the Company's Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Board since February 1, 2022. Mr. Allen previously served as the Chief Business Officer at Ambrx Biopharma, Inc., a publicly-traded engineered precision biologics company developing antibody-drug conjugate and immune-oncology conjugate candidates for breast cancer, gastric cancer and other solid tumors, since March 2019 and from March 2011 to January 2015, and was an advisor and consultant to that company from September 2010 to February 2011. He was the Chief Executive Officer at CohBar Inc., a publicly-traded clinical stage biotechnology company focused on the research and development of mitochondria based therapeutics for the treatment of chronic and age-related diseases, from March 2016 to December 2018. Mr. Allen was a consultant to Solstice Biologics, a biotechnology company focused on nucleic acid therapeutics, from February 2015 to February 2016. He served in a variety of senior positions at Kalypsys, Inc. from April 2008 to June 2010, culminating in his role as Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Allen previously served as the Chief Commercial Officer of CovX from 2006 to 2008 and as the Vice President, Business and Corporate Development of Nuvelo Inc. from 2004 to 2006. He held business development and analyst roles at SkyePharma PLC, Corixa Corporation (formerly Coulter Pharmaceuticals) and Burdett, Buckeridge and Young. Mr. Allen graduated from the University of Sydney, Australia with a B.Sc. degree in Biochemistry and Genetics and earned his M.B.A. from the Australian Graduate School of Management. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that Mr. Allen's 3 0 years of industry experience as a biotechnology executive and track record of creating value by building clinical stage companies qualify him to serve on our Board of Directors.

Aron R. English

Mr. English has served as a member of the Board since June 2020. Mr. English is the founder and has served as the President and Portfolio Manager of 22NW, LP, a Seattle-based value fund specializing in small and microcap investments with a multi-year investment horizon, since August 2014. Previously, Mr. English served as the director of research at Meson Capital Partners LLC, an investment firm, from January 2014 to August 2014. Prior to that, Mr. English served as director of research at RBF Capital, LLC, a provider of wealth management and financial services, from September 2010 until December 2013, after initially serving as a research analyst at the firm from September 2008 to September 2010. Mr. English earned his B.A. degree in English Literature with honors from the University of Washington. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that Mr. English's investment experience and extensive knowledge of the capital markets qualify him to serve on our Board of Directors.

Board Diversity

The Board Diversity Matrix, below, provides the diversity statistics for our Board of Directors and is reviewed annually by our Board.

Board Diversity Matrix (As of September 30, 2022)							
Total Number of Directors	,	7					
				Did Not			
			Non-	Disclose			
	Female	Male	Binary	Gender			
Part I: Gender Identity			·				

Directors	2	4		1
Part II: Demographic Background				
African American or Black				
Alaskan Native or Native American				
Asian		1		
Hispanic or Latinx				
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander				
White				
Two or More Races or Ethnicities				
LGBTQ+				
Did Not Disclose Demographic Background			6	

INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Independence of The Board of Directors

As required under the Nasdaq Stock Market ("Nasdaq") listing standards, a majority of the members of a listed company's board of directors must qualify as "independent," as affirmatively determined by the board of directors. The Board consults with the Company's counsel to ensure that the Board's determinations are consistent with relevant securities and other laws and regulations regarding the definition of "independent," including those set forth in pertinent Nasdaq listing standards as in effect from time to time.

Consistent with these considerations, after review of all relevant identified transactions or relationships between each director, or any of his or her family members, and the Company, its senior management and its independent auditors, the Board has affirmatively determined that all of our current directors, other than Dr. Lawler and Mr. Allen, are independent directors within the meaning of the applicable Nasdaq listing standards, and that Dr. Calloway would be an independent director within the meaning of the applicable Nasdaq listing standards if he were currently a director of the Company. In making this determination, the Board found that none of these directors or nominees for director had a material or other disqualifying relationship with the Company.

Board Leadership Structure

The Board of Directors of the Company has a Chairperson, Dr. Lawler, who has authority, among other things, to call and preside over Board meetings, to set meeting agendas and to determine materials to be distributed to the Board. Accordingly, the Chairperson has substantial ability to shape the work of the Board. The Company believes that separation of the positions of Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer reinforces the independence of the Board in its oversight of the business and affairs of the Company. In addition, the Company believes that having a non-employee Chairperson creates an environment that is more conducive to objective evaluation and oversight of management's performance, increasing management accountability and improving the ability of the Board to monitor whether management's actions are in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. The Board has also appointed Dr. Lin as lead independent director to help reinforce the independence of the Board as a whole. The lead independent director duties and responsibilities include, among other things, to preside over Board meetings in the absence of the Chairperson, preside over and establish the agendas for meetings of the independent directors, act as liaison between the non-independent directors, including the Chairperson, and the independent directors. In addition, it is the responsibility of the lead independent director to coordinate between the Board and management with regard to the determination and implementation of responses to any problematic risk management issues. The Company believes that the combination of having a non-employee Chairperson and lead independent director helps ensure the effective independent functioning of the Board in its oversight responsibilities and enhances the effectiveness of the Board as a whole.

9

Role of the Board in Risk Oversight

We have a risk management program that is overseen by our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Material risks are identified and prioritized by management and each prioritized risk is referred to the Board or a committee thereof. One of the Board's key functions is informed oversight of our risk management process. The Board does not have a standing risk management committee, but rather administers this oversight function directly through the Board as a whole, as well as through various Board standing committees that address risks inherent in their respective areas of oversight. In particular, our Board is responsible for monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure, including a determination of the nature and level of risk appropriate for the Company. While each committee is responsible for specific risks and overseeing the management of such risks, the entire Board is regularly informed through committee reports about such risks. Our Audit Committee has the responsibility to consider and discuss our major financial risk exposures and the steps our management has taken to monitor and control these exposures, including guidelines and policies to govern the process by which risk assessment and management is undertaken. Our Audit Committee's responsibilities also include oversight of cybersecurity risk management. Our Nominating and Governance Committee monitors the effectiveness of our corporate governance practices, including whether they are successful in preventing illegal or improper liability-creating conduct. Our Compensation Committee assesses and monitors whether any of our compensation policies and programs has the potential to encourage excessive risk-taking.

Meetings of The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors met four times during the last fiscal year. Each Board member attended all of the meetings of the Board and of the committees on which he or she served, held during the portion of the last fiscal year for which he or she was a director or committee member.

Information Regarding Committees of the Board of Directors

The Board has three committees: an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The following table provides membership and meeting information for fiscal 2022 for each of the Board committees:

Name	Audit	Compensation	Nominating and Corporate Governance
Joseph F. Lawler			
Simon Allen			
Aron R. English	$X^{(1)}$	$X^{(2)}$	
Kenneth Lin	X	X	X
Areta Kupchyk		X*	X
Jason M. Aryeh	X*		X*
Karah Parschauer	X	X	
Total meetings in fiscal 2022	4	0	0

- (1) Mr. English served on the Audit Committee until Dr. Lin was appointed to the Audit Committee on May 12, 2022.
- (2) Mr. English served on the Compensation Committee until Ms. Parschauer was appointed to the Compensation Committee on May 12, 2022

Below is a description of each committee of the Board of Directors.

Each of the committees has authority to engage legal counsel or other experts or consultants, as it deems appropriate to carry out its responsibilities. The Board of Directors has determined that each member of each committee, including those who served on such committee in the last fiscal year, meets the applicable Nasdaq rules and regulations regarding "independence" and each member is free of any relationship that would impair his or her individual exercise of independent judgment with regard to the Company.

10

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), to oversee the Company's corporate accounting and financial reporting processes and audits of its financial statements. For this purpose, the Audit Committee performs several functions. The Audit Committee evaluates the performance of and assesses the qualifications of the independent auditors; determines and approves the engagement of the independent auditors; determines whether to retain or terminate the existing independent auditors or to appoint and engage new independent auditors; reviews and approves the retention of the independent auditors to perform any proposed permissible non-audit services; monitors the rotation of partners of the independent auditors on the Company's audit engagement team as required by law, reviews and approves or rejects transactions between the company and any related persons; confers with management and the independent auditors regarding the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting; establishes procedures, as required under applicable law, for the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters and the confidential and anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters; and meets to review the Company's annual audited financial statements and quarterly financial statements with management and the independent auditor, including a review of the Company's disclosures under "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations."

The Audit Committee is composed of three directors: Mr. Aryeh (Chair), Dr. Lin and Ms. Parschauer. The Audit Committee met four times during the fiscal year. The Board has adopted a written Audit Committee charter that is available to stockholders on the Company's website at https://ir.anebulo.com/corporate-governance.

The Board of Directors reviews the Nasdaq listing standards definition of independence for Audit Committee members on an annual basis and has determined that all members of the Company's Audit Committee are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 5605(c)(2)(A)(i) and (ii) of the Nasdaq listing standards).

The Board of Directors has also determined that Mr. Aryeh qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert," as defined in applicable SEC rules. The Board made a qualitative assessment of Mr. Aryeh's level of knowledge and experience based on a number of factors, including his formal education and experience as a founder and managing general partner of a hedge fund.

Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors*

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 with management of the Company. The Audit Committee has discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB") and the SEC. The Audit Committee has also received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent accountants' communications with the audit committee concerning independence, and has discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the accounting firm's independence. Based on the foregoing, the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Mr. Jason M. Aryeh Dr. Kenneth Lin Ms. Karah Parschauer

*The material in this report is not "soliciting material," is not deemed "filed" with the SEC and is not to be incorporated by reference in any filing of the Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is composed of three directors: Ms. Kupchyk (Chair), Dr. Lin and Ms. Parschauer. All members of the Compensation Committee are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 5605(d)(2) of the Nasdaq listing standards. The Compensation Committee did not meet during the fiscal year but acted by written consent five times. The Board has adopted a written Compensation Committee charter that is available to stockholders on the Company's website at https://ir.anebulo.com/corporate-governance.

11

The Compensation Committee acts on behalf of the Board to review, adopt or recommend for adoption and oversee the Company's compensation strategy, policies, plans and programs, including:

- establishment of corporate and individual performance objectives relevant to the compensation of the Company's Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers and evaluation of performance in light of these stated objectives;
- review and approval or recommendation to the Board for approval of the compensation and other terms of employment or service, including severance and change-incontrol arrangements, of the Company's Chief Executive Officer and the other executive officers and directors; and
- administration of the Company's incentive-compensation plans and equity-based plans.

Compensation Committee Processes and Procedures

Because the Company's initial public offering was completed in May 2021 and no executive officers were eligible for bonuses or salary increases, the Compensation Committee has acted by written consent to approve executive officer employment agreements and the issuance of options rather than holding formal meetings. In the future, the Compensation Committee expects to meet at least once annually and with greater frequency if necessary. For future meetings, we expect that the agenda for each meeting will be developed by the Chair of the Compensation Committee, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer. The Compensation Committee expects to meet regularly in executive session during the fiscal year 2023. However, from time to time, various members of management and other employees as well as outside advisors or consultants may be invited by the Compensation Committee to make presentations, to provide financial or other background information or advice or to otherwise participate in Compensation Committee meetings. The Chief Executive Officer may not participate in, or be present during, any deliberations or determinations of the Compensation Committee regarding his compensation or individual performance. The charter of the Compensation Committee grants the Compensation Committee full access to all books,

records, facilities and personnel of the Company. In addition, under the charter, the Compensation Committee has the authority to obtain, at the expense of the Company, advice and assistance from compensation consultants and internal and external legal, accounting or other advisors and other external resources that the Compensation Committee considers necessary or appropriate in the performance of its duties. The Compensation Committee has direct responsibility for the oversight of the work of any consultants or advisers engaged for the purpose of advising the Committee. In particular, the Compensation Committee has the sole authority to retain, in its sole discretion, compensation consultants to assist in its evaluation of executive and director compensation, including the authority to approve the consultant's reasonable fees and other retention terms. Under the charter, the Compensation Committee may select, or receive advice from, a compensation consultant, legal counsel or other adviser to the compensation committee, other than in-house legal counsel and certain other types of advisers, only after taking into consideration six factors, prescribed by the SEC and Nasdaq, that bear upon the adviser's independence; however, there is no requirement that any adviser be independent. During the past fiscal year, the Compensation Committee did not engage any compensation consultant.

Historically, annual compensation, bonus and equity awards have been set forth in an executive officer's employment agreement which are approved by the full Board. In addition, our Chief Executive Officer has historically determined the personal and/or Company performance criteria for performance-based bonuses for eligible executive officers, other than the Chief Executive Officer, but the decision to award such bonus is at the discretion of the full Board. Starting in calendar year 2023, the Compensation Committee expects to determine the personal and/or Company performance criteria for performance-based bonuses for our eligible executive officers in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and review and consider matters related to individual executive compensation.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for identifying, reviewing and evaluating candidates to serve as directors of the Company (consistent with criteria approved by the Board or the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee), reviewing and evaluating incumbent directors, selecting, or recommending to the Board for selection, candidates for election to the Board of Directors, making recommendations to the Board regarding the membership of the committees of the Board, assessing the performance of the Board, and, if determined to be appropriate, developing a set of corporate governance principles for the Company.

12

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is composed of three directors: Mr. Aryeh (Chair), Dr. Lin and Ms. Kupchyk. All members of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 5605(a)(2) of the Nasdaq listing standards). The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee did not meet during the fiscal year. The Board has adopted a written Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee charter that is available to stockholders on the Company's website at https://ir.anebulo.com/corporate-governance.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee believes that candidates for director should have certain minimum qualifications, including the ability to read and understand basic financial statements, being over 21 years of age, being in a position to properly exercise duties of loyalty and care and having the highest personal integrity and ethics. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also intends to consider such factors as possessing relevant expertise upon which to be able to offer advice and guidance to management, proven leadership capabilities, having sufficient time to devote to the affairs of the Company, demonstrated excellence and experience with a high level of responsibility in his or her field, having the ability to exercise sound business judgment, having the ability to quickly understand complex principles of business and finance and having the commitment to rigorously represent the long-term interests of the Company's stockholders. However, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee retains the right to modify these qualifications from time to time. Candidates for director nominees are reviewed in the context of the current composition of the Board, the operating requirements of the Company and the long-term interests of stockholders. In conducting this assessment, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers diversity (including gender, racial and ethnic diversity, as well as other self-identified diversity characteristics), age, skills and such other factors as it deems appropriate, given the current needs of the Board and the Company, to maintain a balance of knowledge, experience and capability.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee appreciates the value of thoughtful Board refreshment, and regularly identifies and considers qualities, skills and other director attributes that would enhance the composition of the Board. In the case of incumbent directors whose terms of office are set to expire, the Committee reviews these directors' overall service to the Company during their terms, including the number of meetings attended, level of participation, quality of performance and any other relationships and transactions that might impair the directors' independence. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will also take into account the results of the Board's self-evaluation which we expect to conduct annually on a group and individual basis starting in 2023. In the case of new director candidates, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also determines whether the nominee is independent for Nasdaq purposes, which determination is based upon applicable Nasdaq listing standards, applicable SEC rules and regulations and the advice of counsel, if necessary. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee then uses its network of contacts to compile a list of potential candidates, but may also engage, if it deems appropriate, a professional search firm. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee conducts any appropriate and necessary inquiries into the backgrounds and qualifications of possible candidates after considering the function and needs of the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee meets to discuss and consider the candidates' qualifications and then selects a nominee for recommendation to the Board by majority vote.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider director candidates recommended by stockholders. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not intend to alter the manner in which it evaluates candidates, including the minimum criteria set forth above, based on whether or not the candidate was recommended by a stockholder. Stockholders who wish to recommend individuals for consideration by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to become nominees for election to the Board may do so by delivering a written recommendation to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee at the following address: 1415 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite 201, Lakeway, Texas 78734, Attn: Secretary, not later than the close of business on the 90 th day, nor earlier than the close of business on the 120th day, prior to the first anniversary of the preceding year's annual meeting; provided, however, that in the event that the date of the annual meeting is advanced or delayed by more than 30 days prior to such anniversary date, notice must be delivered not earlier than the close of business on the 120th day prior to such annual meeting and not later than the close of business on the later of the 90th day prior to such annual meeting or the 10th day following the day on which public announcement of the date of such meeting is first made by the Company. Submissions must include (i) the name, age, business address and residence address of such nominee, (ii) the principal occupation or employment of such nominee, (iii) the class or series and number of shares of stock that are owned beneficially and of record by such nominee as well as any derivative or synthetic instrument, convertible security, put, option, stock appreciation right, swap or similar contract, agreement, arrangement or understanding the value of or return on which is based on or linked to the value of or return on any shares of stock, (iv) a description of any agreement, arrangement, or understanding (including any derivative or short positions, profit interests, options, warrants, convertible securities, stock appreciation or similar rights, hedging transactions, and borrowed or loaned shares) that has been entered into as of the date of the stockholder's notice by, or on behalf of, such nominee, whether or not such instrument or right shall be subject to settlement in underlying shares of stock, the effect or intent of which is to mitigate loss to, manage risk or benefit of share price changes for, or increase or decrease the voting power of, such nominee with respect to securities of the Company, (v) all information relating to such nominee that is required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors in an election contest (even if an election contest is not involved), or is otherwise required, in each case pursuant to and in accordance with Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and (vi) such nominee's written consent to being named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected.

13

Stockholder Communications With The Board Of Directors

The Board has a process by which stockholders may communicate with the Board. Any stockholder desiring to communicate with the Board may do so in writing by sending a letter addressed to the Board of Directors, c/o Corporate Secretary at the following address: 1415 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite 201, Lakeway, Texas 78734. The Corporate Secretary has been instructed by the Board to promptly forward communications so received to the members of the Board.

The Company has adopted the Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all officers, directors and employees. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on the Company's website at https://ir.anebulo.com/corporate-governance/governance-documents. If the Company makes any substantive amendments the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics or grants any waiver from a provision of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics to any executive officer or director, the Company will promptly disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver on its website.

Hedging Policy

Our Insider Trading Policy prohibits our employees, including our executive officers, directors and consultants of the Company and members of their immediate family, persons which whom they share a household, persons who are their economic dependents and other individuals or entities whose transactions in securities such persons influence, direct or control from engaging in short sales, transactions in put or call options, hedging transactions, using margin accounts, pledges, standing and limit orders or other inherently speculative transactions involving our equity securities.

* The disclosure under the caption "Hedging Policy" is not to be incorporated by reference in any filing of the Company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

14

PROPOSAL 2

RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has selected EisnerAmper LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 and has further directed that management submit the selection of its independent registered public accounting firm for ratification by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting. EisnerAmper LLP has audited the Company's financial statements since its inception in April 2020. Representatives of EisnerAmper LLP will not be present at the Annual Meeting.

Neither our Bylaws nor other governing documents or law require stockholder ratification of the selection of EisnerAmper LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm. However, the Audit Committee of the Board is submitting the selection of EisnerAmper LLP to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If the stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee of the Board will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee of the Board in its discretion may direct the appointment of different independent auditors at any time during the year if they determine that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares present in person or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the matter at the Annual Meeting will be required to ratify the selection of EisnerAmper LLP.

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table represents aggregate fees billed to the Company for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 by EisnerAmper LLP, the Company's principal accountant.

	 Fiscal Year Ended			
	 2022	2021		
Audit Fees ⁽¹⁾	\$ 112,500	\$	77,500	
Audit-related Fees	_		_	
Tax Fees	_		_	
All Other Fees (specifically describe all other fees incurred)	 			
Total Fees	\$ 112,500	\$	77,500	

(1) Audit fees of EisnerAmper LLP for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 were for professional services rendered for the audits of our financial statements, including accounting consultation, reviews of quarterly financial statements and professional services rendered in connection with our registration statements. Fees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021 include services associated with the initial public offering of our common stock, which was completed in May 2021.

All fees described above were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures.

The Audit Committee's policy is to pre-approve all audit, audit-related and non-audit services provided by the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, EisnerAmper LLP, including fees and cost ranges. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services, and other services. The Audit Committee may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-case basis. The Company's independent registered public accounting firm is required to periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services provided by the Company's independent registered public accounting firm in accordance with such pre-approval. The Audit Committee may also delegate pre-approval authority to one or more of its members. Such member(s) must report any decisions to the Audit Committee at the next scheduled meeting.

The Board Of Directors Recommends A Vote In Favor Of Proposal 2.

15

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the ownership of the Company's common stock as of September 30, 2022 by: (i) each director and nominee for director of the Company; (ii) each of the executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table; (iii) all current executive officers and directors of the Company as a group; and (iv) all those known by the Company to be beneficial owners of more than five percent of its common stock.

The table is based upon information supplied by officers, directors and principal stockholders, and found in Schedules 13D and 13G filed with the SEC and other sources believed to be reliable by the Company. Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes to this table and subject to community property laws where applicable, the Company believes that each of the stockholders named in this table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares indicated as beneficially owned. Applicable percentages are based on 25,633,217 shares of common stock outstanding on September 30, 2022, adjusted as required by rules promulgated by the SEC. The number of shares of common stock used to calculate the percentage ownership of each listed beneficial owner includes the shares of common stock underlying options, warrants or convertible

securities held by such beneficial owner that are exercisable or convertible within 60 days following September 30, 2022. Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each person or entity listed in the table is c/o Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 1415 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite 201, Lakeway, Texas 78734.

Number of Shares	
Trumber of Shares	Percent of Total
12,036,893	46.9%
11,461,288	41.9%
6,769,867	24.8%
4,654,528	18.2%
131,710	*
_	*
29,180	*
1,082,500	4.2%
12,036,893	46.9%
11,461,288	41.9%
34,287	*
34,287	*
36,002	*
36,002	*
23,799,649	85.7%
	12,036,893 11,461,288 6,769,867 4,654,528 131,710 ————————————————————————————————————

^{*} Less than one percent.

- (1) Consists of (i) 2,000,000 shares owned by Mr. Lawler, (ii) 5,000,000 shares held by CAL GRAT 2022-1, a grantor retained annuity trust for which Mr. Lawler serves as the trustee and Mr. Lawler and his wife are the sole beneficiaries, (iii) 5,000,000 shares held by JFL GRAT 2-22-1, a grantor retained annuity trust for which Mr. Lawler serves as the trustee and Mr. Lawler and his wife are the sole beneficiaries, and (iv) 36,893 shares of common stock issuable to Mr. Lawler pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022.
- (2) Consists of (i) the shares described in notes (3) and (4) below and (ii) 36,893 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022.

16

- (3) Includes 1,703,577 shares issuable pursuant to warrants exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022. Mr. English, as the Manager of 22NW Fund GP, LLC, which is the General Partner of 22NW Fund, LP, may be deemed to beneficially own the securities owned directly by 22NW Fund, LP. The address for 22NW Fund, LP is 1455 NW Leary Way, Suite 400, Seattle, Washington 98107.
- (4) Mr. English, as the owner of Pharma Investors, LLC, may be deemed to beneficially own the securities owned directly by Pharma Investors, LLC. The address for Pharma Investors, LLC is 1455 NW Leary Way, Suite 400, Seattle, Washington 98107.
- (5) Consists of 131,710 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022.
- (6) Consists of 29,180 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022.
- (7) Consists of (i) 982,500 shares of common stock held by Mr. Schneeberger, (ii) 50,000 shares of common stock held by ADAR1 Partners, LP (iii) 50,000 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to warrants by ADAR1 Partners, LP which are exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022. Mr. Schneeberger is the Managing Member of the General Partner of ADAR1 Partners, LP and thereby may be deemed to beneficially own the securities held by ADAR1 Partners, LP. Dr. Schneeberger resigned as our President and Chief Executive Officer as of February 1, 2022. The address for Mr. Schneeberger is ADAR1 Partners, LP, 7816 Lynchburg Drive, Austin, Texas 78738, Attn: Daniel Schneeberger.
- (8) Consists of 34,287 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022.
- (9) Consists of 34,287 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022.
- (10) Consists of 36,002 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022.
- (11) Consists of 36,002 shares of common stock issuable pursuant to options exercisable within 60 days of September 30, 2022.
- (12) Includes shares described in the notes (3) through (6) and (8) through (11) above.

Delinquent Section 16(a) Reports

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company's directors and executive officers, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company's equity securities, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of common stock and other equity securities of the Company. Officers, directors and greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To the Company's knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports filed on the SEC's EDGAR system and written representations that no other reports were required, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to its officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial owners were complied with; except that each of Dr. Lawler, Mr. English, Mr. Aryeh, Ms. Kupchyk, Dr. Lin and Ms. Parschauer filed a Form 4 report on September 30, 2022, October 3, 2022 or October 4, 2022 for transactions occurring on April 21, 2022, Dr. Cundy filed a Form 4 report on June 7, 2022 for a transaction occurring on June 1, 2022 and Mr. Allen filed a Form 4 report on October 3, 2022 for a transaction occurring on June 27, 2022.

The names, ages and positions of all executive officers are listed below.

Name	Age	Position(s)
Simon Allen	54	Chief Executive Officer and Director
Rex Merchant	63	Chief Financial Officer
Kenneth C. Cundy, Ph.D.	63	Chief Scientific Officer

The biography of Mr. Allen is set forth in "Proposal 1: Election of Directors" above.

Rex Merchant, has served as the Company's Chief Financial Officer since January 2021. Mr. Merchant has served as the Chief Financial Officer of JFL Capital Management LLC since May 2018. Prior to joining JFL Capital Management LLC, Mr. Merchant served as Chief Financial Officer of Western Investment LLC, a hedge fund manager and investment advisory firm, from September 2008 to December 2017. Mr. Merchant also served as Chief Financial Officer of Leadership Foundations, a non-profit organization, from October 2011 to April 2018. Mr. Merchant has performed business valuation, litigation analysis and expert witness services, as well as extensive work in information technology throughout his career. Mr. Merchant received an M.S. degree in Taxation from Golden Gate University, a B.S. degree in Industrial Engineering from Stanford University, and he holds Chartered Financial Analyst and Chartered Alternative Investment Analyst designations.

Kenneth C. Cundy, Ph.D., has served as the Company's Chief Scientific Officer since May 2022. Prior to that, Dr. Cundy served as the Chief Scientific Officer of CohBar, Inc., a publicly traded clinical stage biotechnology company developing therapeutics targeting chronic and age-related diseases, from November 2014 to March 2022. From December 2012 to November 2014, Dr. Cundy served as the Chief Scientific Officer for XenoPort, Inc., a biopharmaceutical company focused on the development of product candidates for the potential treatment of neurological disorders, and he also served as its Senior Vice President of Preclinical and Clinical Sciences from 2011 to 2012, as its Vice President of Preclinical Development from 2004 to 2011, and as its Vice President of Biopharmaceutics from 2000 to 2004. From 1992 to 2000, Dr. Cundy was Senior Vice President of Biopharmaceutics at Gilead Sciences, Inc. Prior to Gilead Sciences, from 1988 to 1992, Dr. Cundy was Principal Research Investigator at Sterling Drug, a pharmaceutical division of Eastman Kodak Company. He received a B.S. in Pharmacy from the University of Manchester and was registered as a pharmacist in the United Kingdom. He received a Ph.D. in Pharmaceutical Sciences from the University of Kentucky and postdoctoral training in Biochemistry at the University of California, Berkeley.

18

EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Summary Compensation Table

The following table shows for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, compensation awarded to or paid to, or earned by, all individuals who served as the Company's principal executive officer during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 and the two most highly compensated executive officers (other than the principal executive officer) of the Company who were serving as an executive officer of the Company at June 30, 2022 (the "named executive officers").

Summary Compensation Table for Fiscal 2022

Name and Principal Position	Fiscal Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Stock Awards (\$) ⁽¹⁾	Option Awards (\$) ⁽¹⁾	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total (\$)
Simon Allen ⁽²⁾							
President and Chief Executive Officer	2022	187,500	_	_	1,933,341	_	2,120,841
Rex Merchant	2022	275,000	_	_	_	_	275,000
Chief Financial Officer	2021	119,792	_	_	_	_	119,792
Kenneth C. Cundy ⁽³⁾							
Chief Scientific Officer	2022	39,936	_	_	450,421	_	490,357
Daniel Schneeberger ⁽⁴⁾	2022	8,797	_	_	_	_	8,797
Former President and Chief Executive Officer	2021	13,978	_	106,438	_	_	120,416

- (1) Dollar amounts reflect the aggregate grant date fair value of awards granted during the indicated year. This amount has been computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation. Assumptions used in the calculation of this amount are described in our audited financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. These amounts do not reflect the actual economic value that will be realized by the officer upon the vesting or exercise (as applicable) of the award or the sale of the common stock underlying such award.
- (2) Mr. Allen has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer since February 1, 2022.
- (3) Dr. Cundy has served as our Chief Scientific Officer since May 20, 2022.
- (4) Dr. Schneeberger resigned as our President and Chief Executive Officer as of February 1, 2022.

Narrative to Summary Compensation Table

Annual Base Salary

The compensation of our named executive officers is determined and approved by our Board. The fiscal 2022 annual base salaries for our named executives, were as follows:

NAME		2022 BASE	
Simon Allen ⁽¹⁾		\$	450,000
Rex Merchant		\$	275,000
Kenneth C. Cundy ⁽²⁾		\$	350,000
Daniel Schneeberger ⁽³⁾		\$	15,080

- (1) Mr. Allen began providing services to us in February 2022 and did not receive any compensation from us prior to such date. The value provided is the annualized rate for fixed 2022
- (2) Dr. Cundy began providing services to us in May 2022 and did not receive any compensation from us prior to such date. The value provided is the annualized rate for fiscal 2022.
- (3) According to the terms of his employment agreement, prior to his resignation Mr. Schneeberger was paid \$7.25 per hour, subject to review and adjustment by our Board of Directors.

Equity-Based Incentive Awards

executive officers over the long-term. Generally, our Board of Directors, or the Compensation Committee, approves equity grants. Vesting of equity awards is generally tied to continuous service with us and serves as an additional retention measure. Our named executive officers generally are awarded an initial new hire grant upon commencement of employment. Additional grants may occur periodically in order to specifically incentivize our named executive officers with respect to achieving certain corporate goals or to reward our named executive officers for exceptional performance. We have granted all equity awards under our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan. All options are granted with a per share exercise price equal to no less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date of the grant of such award.

19

In February 2022, in connection with his appointment as our Chief Executive Officer, we granted Mr. Allen an option to purchase 625,000 shares of our common stock with a per share exercise price of \$7.02. The option vests ratably in 16 quarterly installments over a four-year period from April 1, 2022 through January 1, 2026, subject to Mr. Allen's continuous service with us. In addition, the option fully vests upon the closing of a Board approved sale of the Company, subject to Mr. Allen's continuous service on the date of such Board approval.

In June 2022, we granted Mr. Allen an option to purchase 77,457 shares of our common stock with a per share exercise price of \$7.02. On June 27, 2022, 4,841 shares underlying the option vested immediately and the remaining 72,616 shares underlying the option vest ratably in 15 quarterly installments from July 1, 2022 through January 1, 2026, subject to Mr. Allen's continuous service with us. In addition, the option fully vests upon the closing of a Board approved sale of the Company, subject to Mr. Allen's continuous service on the date of such Board approval.

In June 2022, we granted Dr. Cundy an option to purchase 350,169 shares of our common stock with a per share exercise price of \$2.91, of which 233,446 shares underlying the option are subject to time-based vesting conditions (the "Time-Based Option") and 116,723 shares under the option are subject to performance-based vesting conditions (the "Performance-Based Option"). The Time-Based Option vests ratably in 16 quarterly installments from July 1, 2022 through April 1, 2026, subject to Dr. Cundy's continuous service with us. The Time-Based Option fully vests upon the closing of a Board approved Reorganization Event (as defined in our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan), subject to Dr. Cundy's continuous service on the date of such Board approval. The Performance-Based Option vests immediately upon FDA approval of ANEB-001 that occurs before June 1, 2027.

Employment Agreements with our Named Executive Officers

We have entered into employment agreements with each of our named executive officers. Each of our named executive officer's employment is (other than Dr. Schneeberger) "at will" and may be terminated by us at any time. For a discussion of the severance pay and other benefits available in connection with a termination of employment and/or a change in control under the arrangements with our named executive officers, please see "—Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control" below. In addition, each of our named executive officers is eligible to participate in the employee benefit plans generally available to our employees.

Simon Allen. In December 2021, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Allen, effective as of February 1, 2022, that provides for, among other things, an initial annual base salary of \$450,000, an option to purchase 625,000 shares of our common stock (as further described under "—Equity-Based Incentive Awards" above) and a cash bonus of \$1.5 million in the event of a Board approved sale of the Company for a sale price equal to or greater than \$500 million.

Rex Merchant. In January 2021, we entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Merchant that provides for, among other things, an initial annual base salary of \$225,000, which was increased to \$275,000 upon the closing of our initial public offering.

Kenneth C. Cundy. In May 2022, we entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Cundy that provides for, among other things, an initial annual base salary of \$350,000, an annual target bonus equal to 30% of his annual base salary (prorated based on the number of days employed), the Time-Based Option and the Performance-Based Option (as further described under "—Equity-Based Incentive Awards" above). Because we determine annual target bonuses on a calendar year basis, Dr. Cundy was not eligible for a bonus for fiscal year 2022.

Daniel Schneeberger. In July 2020, we entered into an employment agreement with Dr. Schneeberger that provided for, among other things, an initial annual base salary of \$7.25 per hour, a restricted stock award of 245,622 shares of our common stock, vesting ratably in six quarterly installments over an 18-month period, and a restricted stock award of 736,878 shares of our common stock (the "Additional Award") vesting based on achievement of certain performance targets as follows: (i) 245,622 shares underlying the restricted stock award vest upon the first patient being dosed in a Phase 2 clinical trial with ANEB-001, (ii) 245,622 shares underlying the restricted stock award vest upon the availability of a newly synthesized active pharmaceutical ingredient acceptable for dosing in a United States clinical trial and (iii) 245,634 shares underlying the restricted stock award vest upon the closing of our initial public offering and our public listing on a major exchange. Following the closing of our initial public offering and listing on Nasdaq, all of the shares underlying the Additional Award vested on an accelerated basis. The initial term of the employment agreement was for three years ending on August 1, 2023, unless earlier terminated. Dr. Schneeberger resigned as our Chief Executive Officer effective as of February 1, 2022.

20

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal year end

The following table shows for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, certain information regarding outstanding equity awards at fiscal year-end for the named executive officers

Outstanding Equity Awards At June 30, 2022

		Option Awards					
				Equity			
				Incentive			
				Plan			
				Awards:			
		Number of	Number of	Number of			
		Securities	Securities	Securities			
		Underlying	Underlying	Underlying			
		Unexercised	Unexercised	Unexercised	Oj	ption	
	Vesting	Options Options Unearned Exercise Opti				Option	
	Commencement	(#)	(#)	Options Price Expir		Expiration	
Name	Date	Exercisable	Unexercisable	(#)	(\$)		Date
Simon Allen	2/1/2022	78,125(1)	546,875	_	\$	7.02	1/31/2027
	6/27/2022	9,682(2)	67,774		\$	7.02	7/31/2027
Rex Merchant	_	_	_	_		_	_
Kenneth C. Cundy	6/1/2022	14,590(3)	218,856	116,723(4)	\$	2.91	6/30/2027
Daniel Schneeberger	_	_	_	_		_	_

- (1) This option vests ratably in 16 quarterly installments over a four-year period from April 1, 2022 through January 1, 2026, subject to Mr. Allen's continuous service with us. In addition, the option fully vests upon the closing of a Board approved sale of the Company, subject to Mr. Allen's continuous service on the date of such Board approval.
- (2) This option vests ratably in 15 quarterly installments from July 1, 2022 through January 1, 2026, subject to Mr. Allen's continuous service with us. In addition, the option fully vests upon the closing of a Board approved sale of the Company, subject to Mr. Allen's continuous service on the date of such Board approval.
- (3) This option vests ratably in 16 quarterly installments from July 1, 2022 through April 1, 2026, subject to Dr. Cundy's continuous service with us. In addition, the option fully vests upon the closing of a Board approved Reorganization Event (as defined in our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan), subject to Dr. Cundy's continuous service on the date of such Board approval.
- (4) This option vests immediately upon FDA approval, on or prior to June 1, 2027, of ANEB-001.

Option Repricings

There were no repricings or cancellations of any of our named executive officers' outstanding equity awards during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We did not engage in modifications to any of our named executive officers' outstanding equity awards during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

Regardless of the manner in which service terminates, all of our named executive officers are entitled to receive amounts earned during his term of service, including unpaid salary and unused vacation, as applicable. Each of our named executive officers is entitled to severance under his employment agreement as described below. In each case, the payment of severance benefits is subject to the named executive officer executing a general waiver and release of claims agreement within 30 days following such named executive officer's termination or resignation date. In addition, if a named executive officer violates any of the restrictive covenants in his employment agreement, any remaining unpaid portion of his severance payment shall be forfeited.

Mr. Allen. If Mr. Allen's employment is terminated by us without "Cause" or by his resignation for "Good Reason," then Mr. Allen shall be entitled to severance in an amount equal to nine months of his annual base compensation plus reimbursement for COBRA premiums paid by him for a maximum of 12 months.

21

Mr. Merchant. If Mr. Merchant's employment is terminated by us without "Cause" or by his resignation for "Good Reason," then Mr. Merchant shall be entitled to severance in an amount equal to the remainder of his annual base compensation for the year in which his termination or resignation occurs.

Dr. Cundy. If Dr. Cundy's employment is terminated by us without "Cause" or by his resignation for "Good Reason," then Dr. Cundy shall be entitled to severance in an amount equal to six months of his annual base compensation and the Company will pay his and his eligible dependents' COBRA premiums, subject to eligibility and timely election, until the earliest of (i) six months following the termination or resignation date, (ii) the expiration of his eligibility for continuation of coverage under COBRA and (iii) the date when he becomes eligible for substantially equivalent health insurance coverage in connection with new employment or self-employment. In addition, the number of shares subject to stock appreciation rights or awards other than options, restricted stock or restricted stock units that entitle Dr. Cundy to receive shares of the Company's common stock ("Other Stock-Based Awards" as defined under our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan) that would have vested during the six months immediately following such termination or resignation date shall immediately vest and be exercisable in accordance with their terms.

Dr. Schneeberger. Dr. Schneeberger was not eligible for, and did not receive, any severance benefits upon his resignation, which was effective February 1, 2022.

In addition, each of our named executive officers, other than Mr. Merchant, is eligible for accelerated vesting of Other Stock-Based Awards held by him upon a "Change in Control" as described below.

Mr. Allen. All Other Stock-Based Awards granted to Mr. Allen under our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan and held by him, but which are still outstanding, as of immediately prior to a Change in Control, to the extent unvested, shall immediately become 100% vested on a date set by the Board, provided Mr. Allen was employed by the Company on the date of the Change in Control. The treatment of Mr. Allen's option awards are further described under "—Equity-Based Incentive Awards" above.

Dr. Cundy. All Other Stock-Based Awards granted to Dr. Cundy under our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan and held by him, but which are still outstanding, as of immediately prior to a Change in Control, to the extent unvested, shall immediately become 100% vested on a date set by the Board, provided Dr. Cundy was employed by the Company on the date of the Change in Control. The treatment of Dr. Cundy's Time-Based Option and the Performance-Based Option are further described under "—Equity-Based Incentive Awards" above.

Under the employment agreements with our named executive officers:

• a termination for "Cause" means a termination due to: (i) the named executive officer's willful failure to substantially perform the duties set forth in his employment agreement (other than any such failure resulting from the named executive officer's disability); (ii) the named executive officer's willful failure to carry out, or comply with, in any material respect any lawful directive of the Board; (iii) the named executive officer's commission at any time of any act or omission that results in, or may reasonably be expected to result in, a conviction, plea of no contest, plea of nolo contendere, or imposition of unadjudicated probation for any felony or crime involving moral turpitude; (iv) the named executive officer's unlawful use (including being under the influence) or possession of illegal drugs on the Company's premises or while performing the named executive officer's duties and responsibilities under his employment agreement; (v) the named executive officer's commission at any time of any act of fraud, embezzlement, misappropriation, material misconduct, conversion of assets of the Company or breach of fiduciary duty against the Company (or any predecessor thereto or successor thereof); or (vi) the named executive officer's material breach of his employment agreement or other agreements with the Company (including, without limitation, any breach of the restrictive covenants of any such agreement); and which, in the case of clauses (i), (ii) and (vi), continues beyond 30 days after the Company has provided the named executive officer written notice of such failure or breach (to the extent that, in the reasonable judgment of the Board, such failure or breach can be cured by the named executive officer), so long as such notice is provided within 90 days after the Company knew or should have known of such condition;

22

• a resignation for "Good Reason" means a resignation within two years after the occurrence of one or more of the following conditions without the named executive officer's written consent: (i) a material diminution in the named executive officer's authority, duties, or responsibilities; (ii) a material diminution in the named executive officer's annual base compensation; (iii) a material change in the geographic location at which the named executive officer must perform the services under his employment agreement that requires the named executive officer to relocate his residence (in the case of Mr. Merchant, outside the U.S); or (iv) any other action or inaction that constitutes a material breach of the named executive officer's employment agreement by the Company; and which, in the case of any of the foregoing, continues beyond 30 days after the named executive officer has provided the Company written notice that the named executive officer believes in good faith that such condition giving rise to such claim of Good Reason has occurred, so long as such notice is provided within 90 days after the initial existence of such condition (and, in the case of Dr. Cundy, he actually resigns employment from the Company within 30 days following the Company's failure to remedy the condition and the expiration of the 30-day cure period); and

• a "Change in Control" means a Reorganization Event (as defined in our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan), which includes the consummation of: (A) the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, (B) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company on a consolidated basis to an unrelated person or entity, (C) a merger, reorganization or consolidation pursuant to which the holders of the Company's outstanding voting power immediately prior to such transaction do not own a majority of the outstanding voting power of the surviving or resulting entity (or its ultimate parent, if applicable), (D) the acquisition of all or a majority of the outstanding voting stock of the Company in a single transaction or a series of a related transactions by a person or group of persons, or (E) any other acquisition of the business of the Company, as determined by the Board; provided, however, that any public offering or other capital raising event, or a merger effected solely to change the Company's domicile, shall not constitute a "Reorganization Event."

Perquisites, health, welfare and retirement benefits

Each of our named executive officers is eligible to participate in our employee benefit plans, including our family health, dental and vision policies, in each case on the same basis as all of our other employees. We do not provide perquisites or personal benefits to our executive officers that we do not generally provide to our other employees.

Director Compensation

The following table shows for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 certain information with respect to the compensation of all non-employee directors of the Company:

Director Compensation for Fiscal 2022

Name ⁽¹⁾	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash (\$)	Option Awards (\$) ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾	Total (\$)
Joseph F. Lawler	11,000	79,000	90,000
Aron R. English	11,000	79,000	90,000
Jason M. Aryeh	1,000	79,000	80,000
Areta Kupchyk	11,000	79,000	90,000
Kenneth Lin	1,000	79,000	80,000
Karah Parschauer	11,000	79,000	90,000

(1) Mr. Allen did not earn compensation during fiscal 2022 for his service on the Board. Mr. Allen's compensation is fully reflected in the "— Summary Compensation Table" above.

23

- (2) As of June 30, 2022, each of our non-employee directors held outstanding options to purchase an aggregate of 112,715 shares of our common stock.
- (3) In accordance with SEC rules, this amount reflects the aggregate grant date fair value of stock option awards granted during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. These amounts have been computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board, Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation. Assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are described in our audited financial statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended June 30, 2022. This amount does not reflect the actual economic value that will be realized upon the exercise of the stock options or the sale of the common stock underlying such stock options.

Narrative to Director Compensation Table

In April 2022, our Board of Directors granted each of our non-employee directors an option to purchase 30,425 shares of our common stock at a per share exercise price of \$6.00. The options vest as follows: 25% vests on March 1, 2023 and the balance vests in equal monthly installments over the following 36 months.

Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy

Our Board of Directors adopted a non-employee director compensation policy which provides that each non-employee director will receive certain compensation for service on our Board. Cash retainers are paid in equal quarterly installments, payable in advance on the first day of each fiscal quarter in which the service will occur. However, if a director joins the Board or a committee of the Board other than on the first day of the fiscal quarter, each annual retainer will be prorated based on days served in the applicable fiscal year, with the prorated amount paid for the first fiscal quarter in which the non-employee director provides the service and regular full quarterly payments thereafter. Our non-employee director compensation policy provides for the following compensation:

- an annual cash retainer of \$1,000;
- an additional annual cash retainer of \$10,000 for service as Chairperson of our Board of Directors;
- an additional annual cash retainer of \$10,000 for service as the Chair of the Audit Committee, Compensation Committee or Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee; and
- an initial grant of options to acquire shares of our common stock with a grant date fair market value of \$79,000, vesting on a straight-line monthly basis over four years
 of continuous service, as described in the applicable stock option agreement, and granted under our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan.

24

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides certain information with respect to our 2020 Stock Incentive Plan, which was our only equity compensation plan in effect as of June 30, 2022.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan Category	Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, warrants and rights (a)	Weighted-average exercise price of outstanding options, warrants and rights (b)	Number of securities remaining available for issuance under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in column (a))	
Equity compensation plans				
approved by security holders	2,893,959	\$ 2.32	756,041	
Equity compensation plans not				
approved by security holders	_	_	_	

Total 2,893,959 \$ 2.32 756,041

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS AND INDEMNIFICATION

Related Person Transactions Policy and Procedures

In September 2021, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee adopted a written Related Person Transactions Policy, which was amended in October 2022, that sets forth the Company's policies and procedures regarding the identification, review, consideration and approval or ratification of "related party transactions." For purposes of the Company's policy only, a "related party transaction" is a transaction, arrangement or relationship (or any series of similar transactions, arrangements or relationships) in which the Company and any "related party" are participants involving an amount that exceeds \$120,000 or, if less, 1% of the average of our total assets at year-end for the prior two completed fiscal years. Transactions involving compensation for services provided to the Company as an employee, director, consultant or similar capacity by a related party are not covered by this policy. A related party is any executive officer, director, nominee for director, or more than 5% stockholder of the Company, including any of their immediate family members, and any entity owned or controlled by such persons.

Under the policy, where a transaction has been identified as a related person transaction, management must present information regarding the proposed related person transaction to the Audit Committee (or, where Audit Committee approval would be inappropriate, to another independent body of the Board) for consideration and approval or ratification. The presentation must include a description of, among other things, the material facts, the interests, direct and indirect, of the related persons, the benefits to the Company of the transaction and whether any alternative transactions were available. To identify related person transactions in advance, the Company relies on information supplied by its executive officers, directors and certain significant stockholders. In considering related person transactions, the Audit Committee takes into account the relevant available facts and circumstances including, but not limited to (a) the risks, costs and benefits to the Company, (b) the impact on a director's independence in the event the related person is a director, immediate family member of a director or an entity with which a director is affiliated, (c) the terms of the transaction, (d) the availability of other sources for comparable services or products and (e) the terms available to or from, as the case may be, unrelated third parties or to or from employees generally. In the event a director has an interest in the proposed transaction, the director must recuse himself or herself form the deliberations and approval. The policy requires that, in determining whether to approve, ratify or reject a related person transaction, the Audit Committee consider, in light of known circumstances, whether the transaction is in, or is not inconsistent with, the best interests of the Company and its shareholders, as the Audit Committee determines in the good faith exercise of its discretion.

Related Party Transactions

The following includes a summary of transactions since July 1, 2020 to which we have been a party, in which the amount involved in the transaction exceeded \$120,000 or, if less, 1% of the average of our total assets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and in which any of our directors, nominees for director, executive officers or, to our knowledge, beneficial owners of more than 5% of our capital stock or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than equity and other compensation, termination, change in control and other arrangements, which are described under "Executive and Director Compensation" above.

June 2020 Private Placement

On June 18, 2020, we received gross proceeds of \$3,000,000 from a private placement of our series A preferred stock (the "Private Placement"), convertible into 2,047,500 shares of our Common Stock, pursuant to the terms of a securities purchase agreement (the "Securities Purchase Agreement") with 22NW Fund, LP, an institutional accredited investor affiliated with Aron R. English, who became a director of our company at such time. The series A preferred stock converted into shares of our common stock, on a one-to-one basis, automatically upon the closing of our initial public offering.

2.5

As part of the Private Placement, 22NW Fund, LP and Mr. English, individually, further agreed under the Securities Purchase Agreement to purchase, upon the achievement of certain corporate events, milestone warrants for \$2,250,000 in the aggregate. The milestone warrants were exercisable for cash for up to 6,896,406 shares of series A preferred stock at an exercise price of \$1.69 per share or on a "net-exercise" basis into such lesser number of shares of series A preferred stock by surrendering a portion of the underlying warrant shares, based on the positive difference between the stated milestone warrant exercise price and the initial public offering price per share, to pay the exercise price. The Securities Purchase Agreement provided that the milestone warrants must be purchased upon our achievement of (i) a filing with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration of an investigational new drug application or the making of an analogous regulatory filing in any foreign jurisdiction, whichever occurred earlier, and (ii) an arrangement by us to produce the active pharmaceutical ingredient of ANEB-001, the Company's lead product candidate, in amounts sufficient to facilitate the consummation of a trial pursuant to such regulatory filing, or otherwise forfeited. On March 8, 2021, 22NW Fund, LP and Mr. English purchased the milestone warrants for \$2,250,000 in cash following acceptance of an open European clinical trial application in the Netherlands, permitting us to utilize ANEB-001 on human subjects in a Phase 2 clinical trial, and exercised the milestone warrants on a net-exercise basis into 5,236,343 shares of common stock in connection with the closing of our initial public offering.

As part of the Private Placement, we entered into an Investors' Rights Agreement with 22NW Fund, LP. Upon the closing of our initial public offering, all rights under the Investors' Rights Agreement terminated, except for the registration rights set forth therein. Pursuant to the terms of the Investors' Rights Agreement, if we register any of our securities either for our own account or for the account of other security holders, 22NW Fund, LP is entitled to certain "piggyback" registration rights allowing it to include its registrable securities in such registration, subject to specified conditions and limitations. The registration rights granted under the Investors' Rights Agreement will terminate with respect to the registrable securities upon the earlier of (i) the closing of a "Deemed Liquidation Event" (as defined in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, (ii) such time after the closing of our initial public offering as Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act or another similar exemption under the Securities Act is available for the sale of all of 22NW Fund, LP's shares without limitation during a three-month period without registration or (ii) the third anniversary of our initial public offering. All fees, costs and expenses of registrations under the Investors' Rights Agreement will be borne by us and all selling expenses, including underwriting discounts and selling commissions, if any, will be borne by 22NW Fund, LP.

Initial Public Offering

22NW Fund, LP purchased shares of our common stock in our initial public offering in May 2021 in an aggregate amount of \$5.0 million. The shares sold to 22NW Fund, LP were at the same price and on the same terms as the other investors in the initial public offering.

September 2022 Private Placement

In September 2022, we completed a private placement of 2,264,650 units (collectively, the "Units"), with each Unit consisting of (i) one share of the Company's common stock, par value \$0.001 per share ("Common Stock"), and (ii) a warrant to purchase one share of Common Stock (the "Common Warrants"), for an aggregate purchase price of approximately \$6.6 million (or \$2.935 per Unit). Each Common Warrant has an exercise price of \$4.215 per share, which is subject to customary adjustments in the event of any combination or split of the Common Stock, and has a five-year term. The Common Warrants contain beneficial ownership limitations which prevent the holder from exercising the Common Warrants if immediately following such exercise the holder would beneficially own shares of Common Stock in excess of the stated beneficial ownership limitation. 22NW Fund, LP, a fund affiliated with Mr. English, a director of the Company and the second largest beneficial owner of Common Stock, participated in the private placement and purchased 1,703,577 Units at the per Unit purchase price, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately \$5.0 million. Pursuant to the securities purchase agreement for this private placement, we agreed to prepare and file a registration statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or before November 2, 2022 to register the resale of the shares of Common Stock included in the Units and the shares of Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Common Warrants.

We lease our office space in Lakeway, Texas from JFL Capital Management LLC, a company controlled by Dr. Lawler, the founder and the Chairman of the Board of our Company. Our office lease is month-to-month, and currently we pay rent of approximately \$1,300 per month.

Indemnification

We provide indemnification for our directors and executive officers so that they will be free from undue concern about personal liability in connection with their service to us. Under our Bylaws, we are required to indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted under the DGCL. We have also entered into indemnity agreements with certain officers and directors. These agreements provide, among other things, that the Company will indemnify the officer or director, under the circumstances and to the extent provided for in the agreement, for all expenses, judgments, penalties, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any proceeding or any claim, issue or matter therein, which he or she was, is or will be involved as a party or otherwise by reason of his or her position as a director, officer, employee, agent or other fiduciary of the Company, and otherwise to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law.

26

HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS

The SEC has adopted rules that permit companies and intermediaries (e.g., brokers) to satisfy the delivery requirements for Annual Meeting materials with respect to two or more stockholders sharing the same address by delivering a single set of Annual Meeting materials addressed to those stockholders. This process, which is commonly referred to as "householding," potentially means extra convenience for stockholders and cost savings for companies.

This year, a number of brokers with account holders who are our stockholders will be "householding" the Company's proxy materials. A single set of Annual Meeting materials will be delivered to multiple stockholders sharing an address unless contrary instructions have been received from the affected stockholders. Once you have received notice from your broker that they will be "householding" communications to your address, "householding" will continue until you are notified otherwise or until you revoke your consent. If, at any time, you no longer wish to participate in "householding" and would prefer to receive a separate set of Annual Meeting materials, please notify your broker or us. Direct your written request to Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Attn: Secretary, at 1415 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite 201, Lakeway, Texas 78734, or contact Rex Merchant at (512) 598-0931. Stockholders who currently receive multiple copies of the Annual Meeting materials at their addresses and would like to request "householding" of their communications should contact their brokers.

27

OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors knows of no other matters that will be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying proxy to vote on such matters in accordance with their best judgment.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Rex Merchant Secretary

Jan Rewell

October 17, 2022

A copy of the Company's Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 is available without charge upon written request to: Secretary, Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 1415 Ranch Road 620 South, Suite 201, Lakeway, Texas 78734.

YOUR VOTE IS IMPORTANT. PLEASE VOTE TODAY.

Vote by Internet -QUICK □□□ EASY IMMEDIATE - 24 Hours a Day, 7 Days a Week or by Mail

ANEBULO PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

Your Internet vote authorizes the named proxies to vote your shares in the same manner as if you marked, signed and returned your proxy card. Votes submitted electronically over the Internet must be received by 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on October 27, 2022.

Ţ	INTERNET/MOBILE -
	www.cstproxyvote.com

Use the Internet to vote your proxy. Have your proxy card available when you access the above website. Follow the prompts to vote your shares.

MAIL – Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope provided.

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN THE PROXY CARD IF YOU ARE VOTING ELECTRONICALLY.

		☐ FOLD HERE • DO NOT SEPARATE	• INS	ERT IN ENV	ELOPE PR	OVIDED II		
PROXY		B TOED HERE DO NOT CEL ARATE		EKT IN ENV	LLOI L I K	011020	Please mark your votes	V
THE BOARD OF D PROPOSAL 2.	IRECT	FORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE	FOF	R ALL FO	OR THE	NOMINEES AND	like this	^
Election of three Classerve until the 2025			2.	Committe	e of the I	on by the Audit Board of Directors EisnerAmper LLP	FOR AGAINS	ABSTAIN
	FOR	WITHHOLD		as the independent registered public accounting firm of the Company for its				
(1) Nat Calloway						ne Company for its ine 30, 2023.		
(2) Areta Kupchyk								
(3) Kenneth Lin								
			CONTROL N	UMBER				
Signature		Signature, if he	ld jo	intly			ate	, 2022.
		proxies heretofore given by the signer to vote n. When signing as attorney, executor, adminis					exactly as name	appears

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on October 28, 2022

The Proxy Statement and our 2022 Annual Report to Stockholders are available at: https://www.cstproxy.com/anebulo/2022

 $\hfill \square$ Fold Here • Do not separate • insert in envelope provided $\hfill \square$

PROXY

THIS PROXY IS SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ANEBULO PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

The undersigned stockholder of Anebulo Pharmaceuticals, Inc. hereby appoints Simon Allen and Rex Merchant, as proxies (with full power of substitution) to vote all shares which the undersigned would be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held on Friday, October 28, 2022 at 9:00 a.m., Pacific time, and any adjournment thereof.

THIS PROXY WHEN PROPERLY EXECUTED WILL BE VOTED AS DIRECTED. IF NO DIRECTION IS MADE, THIS PROXY WILL BE VOTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' RECOMMENDATIONS. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR ALL THE NOMINEES AND FOR PROPOSAL 2.

Continued, and to be marked, dated and signed on the reverse side.